



City of Chicago



O2019-8517

Office of the City Clerk

Document Tracking Sheet

Meeting Date: 11/13/2019

Sponsor(s): Lightfoot (Mayor)

Type: Ordinance

Title: Amendment of Municipal Code Titles 2, 4, 7, 9, 10, 11, 15 and 17 (2020 Municipal Code Corrections Ordinance)

Committee(s) Assignment: Committee on Budget and Government Operations

BUDG.



OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
CITY OF CHICAGO

LORI E. LIGHTFOOT
MAYOR

November 13, 2019

TO THE HONORABLE, THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO

Ladies and Gentlemen:

At the request of the Budget Director, I transmit herewith the 2020 Code Corrections ordinance.

Your favorable consideration of this ordinance will be appreciated.

Very truly yours,

A handwritten signature in black ink that reads "Lori E. Lightfoot". The signature is fluid and cursive, with the first letters of each word being capitalized and prominent.

Mayor

ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, The City of Chicago is a home rule unit of government as defined in Article VII, §6(a) of the Illinois Constitution; and

WHEREAS, As a home rule unit of government, the City of Chicago may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs; and

WHEREAS, From time to time, provisions in the Municipal Code contain typographical or grammatical errors or are obsolete, erroneous, or otherwise in need of correction; and

WHEREAS, Maintaining an up-to-date and accurate Municipal Code is a matter pertaining to the government and affairs of the City of Chicago; now, therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHICAGO:

This ordinance is divided into five articles, as follows:

- | | |
|--------------|--------------------------------|
| Article I. | Street Names |
| Article II. | City Council Committees |
| Article III. | Journal Correction |
| Article IV. | Miscellaneous Code Corrections |
| Article V. | Effective date |

ARTICLE 1. STREET NAMES

SECTION 1. Section 2-8-570 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-8-570 Twenty-seventh ward.

The Twenty-seventh Ward shall be all that portion of the city bounded as follows: beginning at the intersection of West Van Buren Street and South Western Avenue; thence south on South Western Avenue to ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive; thence east on ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to South Leavitt Street; thence south on South Leavitt to West Harrison Street; thence east on West Harrison Street to South Damen Avenue; thence north on South Damen Avenue to ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive; thence east on ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to South Wolcott Avenue;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 2. Section 2-8-580 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-8-580 Twenty-eighth Ward.

The Twenty-eighth Ward shall be all that portion of the city bounded as follows: beginning at the intersection of North Pine Avenue and West West End Avenue; thence east on West West End Avenue to North Long Avenue; thence north on North Long Avenue to West Fulton Street; thence east on West Fulton Street to North Lorel Avenue; thence south on North Lorel Avenue to West Fulton Street; thence east on West Fulton Street to North Laramie Avenue; thence north on North Laramie Avenue to West Ferdinand Street; thence east on West Ferdinand Street to North Leamington Avenue; thence south on South Leamington Avenue to West Kinzie Street; thence east on West Kinzie Street to North Lamon Avenue; thence north on North Lamon Avenue to the alley just north of West Kinzie Street; thence east along the alley just north of West Kinzie Street to the alley just west of North Cicero Avenue; thence north along the alley just west of North Cicero Avenue to West Erie Street; thence east on West Erie Street to North Cicero Avenue; thence north on North Cicero Avenue to West Chicago Avenue; thence east on West Chicago Avenue to the southern spur of the Union Pacific Railroad; thence southerly on the southern spur of the Union Pacific Railroad to North Pulaski Road; thence south on North Pulaski Road to West Lake Street; thence east on West Lake Street to North Hamlin Avenue; thence north on North Hamlin Avenue to the Chicago and North Western Railroad; thence east on the Chicago and North Western Railroad to North Homan Avenue; thence north on North Homan Avenue to West Franklin Boulevard; thence east on West Franklin Boulevard to North Kedzie Avenue; thence south on North Kedzie Avenue to West Warren Boulevard; thence east on West Warren Boulevard to North Albany Avenue; thence south on North Albany Avenue to West Madison Street; thence east on West Madison Street to South Sacramento Boulevard; thence south on South Sacramento Boulevard to West Harrison Street; thence east on West Harrison Street to South California Avenue; thence north on South California Avenue to West Van Buren Street; thence east on West Van Buren Street to South Washtenaw Avenue; thence north on South Washtenaw Avenue to West Adams Street; thence east on West Adams Street to the Chicago and North Western Railroad; thence south on the Chicago and North Western Railroad to West Van Buren Street; thence east on West Van Buren Street to South Western Avenue; thence south on South Western Avenue to ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive; thence east on ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to South Leavitt Street; thence south on South Leavitt Street to West Harrison Street; thence east on West Harrison Street to South Damen Avenue; thence north on South Damen Avenue to ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive; thence east on ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to South Wolcott Avenue;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 3. Section 4-8-037 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-8-037 Restrictions on mobile food vendors.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(b-1) No mobile prepared food vendor shall operate on the sidewalk on both sides of the following roadways:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(6) On State Street, between Lake Street and ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive;

(7) On Wabash Avenue, between Lake Street and ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 4. Section 4-12-010 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-12-010 Definitions.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

“Central Business District” means the district consisting of those streets or parts of streets within the area bounded by a line as follows: beginning at the easternmost point of Division Street extended to Lake Michigan; then west on Division Street to LaSalle Street; then south on LaSalle Street to Chicago Avenue; then west on Chicago Avenue to Halsted Street; then south on Halsted Street to I-290; then east on I-290 to ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to its easternmost point extended to Lake Michigan; including parking spaces on both sides of the above-mentioned streets.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 5. Section 4-60-022 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-60-022 Restrictions on additional licenses.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(2.156) On the east side of Wood Street and the west side of Paulina Street, both from ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to the line of Flournoy Street (extended); and on Harrison Street, from Paulina Street to Wood Street.

(2.157) On Paulina Street, from ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to Adams Street.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(2.170) On Ogden Avenue, from Jackson Boulevard to ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(24.222) On Cicero Avenue, from Polk Street to ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive.

(24.223) On Cicero Avenue, from ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to Jackson Boulevard.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(27.250) On the north side of ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive, from Wood Street to Damen Avenue.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(27.326) On the east side of Damen Avenue, from ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to Adams Street.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 6. Section 4-60-023 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-60-023 Restrictions on additional package goods licenses.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(2.157) On the north side of ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive, from Wood Street to Damen Avenue.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(2.162) On Ashland Avenue, from ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to Adams Street.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(2.174) On Ogden Avenue, from Jackson Boulevard to ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(24.226) On Cicero Avenue, from Polk Street to ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(24.230) On Paulina Street, from ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to Adams Street.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(27.326) On the east side of Damen Avenue, from ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to Adams Street.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(27.434) On the east side of Wood Street and the west side of Paulina Street, both from ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to the line of Flournoy Street (extended); and on Harrison Street, from Paulina Street to Wood Street.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 7. Section 4-244-140 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-244-140 Prohibited districts.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(23) Pulaski Road from, West Lake Street to ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 8. Section 4-244-164 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-244-164 Duties – Prohibited Acts – Other requirements.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

Any performer whose performance in the area bounded by Lake Michigan on the east, Oak Street on the north, ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive on the south and LaSalle Street and Wacker Drive on the west (including both sides of the named boundary streets), has exceeded the noise limitations set forth in Section 8-32-070, and restated in this subsection (d)(1), and who is given notice thereof and requested to move by a police officer, shall move the location of his or her performance at least two city blocks from the location where the noise violation occurred. Failure to obey such a request to move is a violation of this section.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 9. Section 7-28-226 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

7-28-226 Zone of nonoperation.

Zone of nonoperation. No person shall grind or compact, or load into a mobile or stationary grinding or compacting device, garbage, wastes, refuse or other matter (within the meaning of Section 4-6-130, of this chapter), without a special permit, between the hours of 9:30 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., Mondays through Fridays, and between the hours of 9:30 p.m. and 9:00 a.m., Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, on any street, alley, public way or on public or private property within the boundaries of the City of Chicago, which: (A) is within the area bounded by Weed Street on the north, Halsted Street on the east, Blackhawk Street on the south and Dayton Street on the west, or (B) adjoins or is within 250 feet of any business or residential zoning classification as defined in the Chicago Zoning Ordinance; except that this section shall not apply to that area bounded by the Chicago River on the north, Lake Michigan on the east, a line delineated by ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive extended and ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive on the south, the South Branch of the Chicago River on the west. Special permits to operate within the zone of nonoperation during the hours prohibited

aforesaid, may be issued by the commissioner of streets and sanitation only after a showing, based on health, safety or public welfare that an extreme hardship exists. This section shall not apply to household appliances.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 10. Section 9-16-040 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

9-16-040 Limitations on turning.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(b) It shall be unlawful for the operator of any vehicle to turn such vehicle in any street so as to proceed in the opposite direction in the territory bounded by and including Wacker Drive on the west and the north, Michigan Avenue on the east, and ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive on the south, unless official signs are erected to permit such turns.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 11. Section 9-48-030 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

9-48-030 Horse-drawn carriages – Driving prohibited on certain streets and during certain times.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(c) No horse-drawn carriage may be driven in the area bounded in the north and west by Wacker Drive, on the east by Wabash Avenue, and on the south by ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive between 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except by permit issued pursuant to Section 9-48-020(b) or on holidays as defined in Section 9-4-010.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 12. Section 9-48-045 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

9-48-045 Restrictions on operation of pedicabs.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(b) No pedicab shall be operated Monday through Friday, except on holidays as defined in Section 9-4-010, between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. and between 4:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m. on public ways under the jurisdiction of the city in the area bounded in the north and west by Chicago River, on the east by Lake Michigan, and on the south by ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive.

(c) No pedicab shall be operated on Michigan Avenue and State Street from Congress Parkway Ida B. Wells Drive to Oak Street.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 13. Section 9-64-110 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

9-64-110 Parking prohibited – Roadways, sidewalks, bridges and similar locations.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(3) Solely for the purposes of this subsection (a), the term “Central Business District” shall be defined as provided in Section 9-4-010, but excluding the area bordered by: Interstate 90 to the west; the centerline of West Roosevelt Road to the south; the east side of (extended) South Wells Street to the east; and ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive, extending west along Interstate 290 (Eisenhower Expressway) to Interstate 90, to the north;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 14. Section 9-64-180 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

9-64-180 Restricted parking – Area bounded by Chicago River, Michigan Avenue and Harrison Street.

(a) Except as provided in subsection (b), it is unlawful to park any vehicle at any time on the following streets: Garvey Court, from Lake Street to Wacker Drive; State Street and Michigan Avenue, from Wacker Drive to ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 15. Section 9-64-205 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

9-64-205 Parking meter rates.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(a) Except as provided in subsection (d), within the area bounded by the south side of ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive on the south, Lake Michigan on the east, the north side of Wacker Drive on the north, and the west side of Wacker Drive on the west, the fee shall be \$6.50 per hour.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 16. Section 10-28-675 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

10-28-675 Restricted zones – Designated.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(16) That portion of the city bounded as follows: Beginning at the intersection of Lake Michigan and ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive extended; thence west on ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive extended and ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to the South Branch of the Chicago River; thence north on the South Branch of the Chicago River to the Chicago River; thence generally easterly along the Chicago River to Lake Michigan; thence generally south along Lake Michigan to the place of beginning.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(30) All that portion of the city bounded as follows: Beginning at the intersection of South Laramie Avenue and West Roosevelt Road; thence north on South Laramie Avenue to West Harrison Street; thence east on West Harrison Street to South Lavergne Avenue; thence north on South Lavergne Avenue to West Jackson Boulevard; thence east on West Jackson Boulevard to South Kostner Avenue; thence south on South Kostner Avenue to West Gladys Avenue; thence east on West Gladys Avenue to South Kildare Avenue; thence south on South Kildare Avenue to West Van Buren Street; thence east on West Van Buren Street to South Hamlin Avenue; thence south on South Hamlin Avenue to ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive; thence east on ~~West Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive to South Kedzie Avenue;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(32) All that portion of the city bounded as follows: Beginning at the intersection of West Quincy Street and South Laramie Avenue; thence north on South Laramie Avenue to West Kinzie Street; thence east on West Kinzie Street to North Lavergne Avenue; thence north on North Lavergne Avenue to West Ferdinand Street; thence east on West Ferdinand Street to North Lamont Avenue; thence north on North Lamont Avenue to West Chicago Avenue; thence east on West Chicago Avenue to North Pulaski Road; thence south on North Pulaski Road to West Ohio Street; thence east on West Ohio Street to North Kedzie Avenue; thence south on North Kedzie Avenue to the north frontage roadway of West Franklin Boulevard; thence west on the north frontage roadway of West Franklin Boulevard to North Sawyer Avenue; thence south on North Sawyer Avenue to the south frontage roadway of West Franklin Boulevard; thence east on the south frontage roadway of West Franklin Boulevard to North Kedzie Avenue; thence south on North Kedzie Avenue to West Washington Boulevard; thence east on West Washington Boulevard to North Campbell Avenue; thence south on North Campbell Avenue to West Madison Street; thence west on West Madison Street to South Campbell Avenue; thence south on South Campbell Avenue to West Monroe Street; thence west on West Monroe Street to the centerline of the right of Conrail; thence south on the centerline of the right of way of Conrail to West Polk Street; thence east on West Polk Street to South Western Avenue, thence south on South Western Avenue to West 16th Street; thence west on West 16th Street to South California Boulevard; thence north on South California Boulevard to West Ogden Avenue; thence southwesterly on West Ogden Avenue to South Sacramento Drive; thence northerly on South Sacramento Drive and South Sacramento Boulevard to West Harrison Street; thence west on West Harrison Street to South Kedzie Avenue; thence north on South Kedzie Avenue to

~~West Congress Parkway Ida B. Wells Drive~~; thence west on ~~West Congress Parkway Ida B. Wells Drive~~ to South Hamlin Boulevard; thence north on South Hamlin Boulevard to West Van Buren Street; thence west on West Van Buren Street to South Kildare Avenue; thence north on South Kildare Avenue to West Gladys Avenue; thence west on West Gladys Avenue to South Kostner Avenue; thence north on South Kostner Avenue to West Jackson Boulevard; thence west to West Jackson Boulevard to South Leamington Avenue; thence north on South Leamington Avenue to West Quincy Street; thence west on West Quincy Street to the place of beginning.

(38) All that portion of the city bounded as follows: Beginning at the intersection of East Cermak Road and South Indiana Avenue; thence north on South Indiana Avenue to East Cullerton Street; thence west on East Cullerton Street to South Michigan Avenue; thence north on South Michigan Avenue to East 8th Street; thence west on East 8th Street to South Holden Court; thence north on South Holden Court to East Harrison Street; thence west on East Harrison Street to South State Street; thence north on South State Street to ~~West Congress Parkway Ida B. Wells Drive~~; thence west on ~~West Congress Parkway Ida B. Wells Drive~~ to South Plymouth Court;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(c) In addition to the locations prohibited in subsection (b) of this section, based upon the consideration described in subsection (a) of this section, advertising benches are prohibited in the following locations.

- (1) All locations adjacent to the following intersections on the specified corners:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

Damen Avenue and ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive (southeast corner);

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 17. Section 15-24-1150 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

15-24-1150 Travel over subway routes prohibited.

It shall be unlawful for any person to transport flammable liquids on any public way within the city under which is constructed any subway used exclusively for local passenger transportation purposes. Such public ways shall include but not be limited to the following:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

~~W. Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive from S. Dearborn Street to S. Des Plaines Street.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 18. Section 17-8-0900 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

17-8-0900 Standards and guidelines.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(b) Upper-level setbacks are not permitted on State Street or Wabash Avenue between the Chicago River and ~~Congress Parkway~~ Ida B. Wells Drive, unless the upper-level setbacks occur at a height above 55 feet.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 19. References in any non-codified ordinance, agreement or other city-generated document to Congress Parkway ("CP") shall be deemed, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, to refer to Ida B. Wells Drive ("IBWD").

ARTICLE II. CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES

SECTION 1. Section 2-8-120 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language stricken through, as follows:

2-8-120 Rules and regulations.

~~The committee on committees, rules and ethics~~ Committee on Committees and Rules shall have the authority, subject to the approval of the ~~city council~~ City Council, to adopt such rules and regulations as are necessary for the effective implementation and enforcement of this ordinance and the requirements contained herein Section 2-8-050, Section 2-8-051, Section 2-8-070, and Section 2-8-110.

SECTION 2. Section 2-8-130 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language stricken through, as follows:

2-8-130 Penalties.

Any alderman who wilfully fails to comply with the provisions of this ordinance Section 2-8-050, Section 2-8-051, Section 2-8-070 or Section 2-8-110, fails to file a disclosure statement within the time prescribed by this ordinance or knowingly files a false or misleading disclosure statement shall be subject to censure or suspension as provided in the ~~city council's rules of procedure and order~~ City Council's Rules of Order and Procedure.

SECTION 3. Section 2-25-200 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-25-200 Office of Labor Standards.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(g) *Annual report to City Council – Required.* No later than June 1, 2020, and on or before June 1st of each year thereafter, the Director shall submit to the City Council Committee on Workforce Development and Audit, or to its successor committee, a written report describing the activities undertaken by the Office during the previous year to implement this section, along with recommendations for improving the efficient and effective enforcement of this section. The chairman of that committee may request the Commissioner or Director, or their respective designees, to appear at a hearing of the committee to explain and respond to questions about such annual report.

SECTION 4. Section 2-44-090 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through:

2-44-090 Near north/near west affordable housing pilot area.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(H) *Pending applications.* This section shall apply to all residential housing projects subject to the affordable housing requirements of Section 2-44-080, unless: (1) an ordinance authorizing a City land sale or financial assistance, as described in Section 2-44-080(C), has been introduced to City Council prior to November 1, 2017; or (2) an ordinance authorizing a rezoning of property, as described in Section 2-44-080(C), has been introduced to City Council and (i) in the case of projects that are subject to planned development review, the Chicago Plan Commission has adopted a resolution recommending approval of the planned development prior to November 1, 2017, or (ii) in the case of any other rezoning of property, the Committee on Zoning, Landmarks and ~~Buildings~~ Building Standards has voted to approve the rezoning prior to November 1, 2017.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 5. Section 2-44-100 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-44-100 Milwaukee corridor affordable housing pilot area.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(H) *Pending applications.* This section shall apply to all residential housing projects subject to the affordable housing requirements of Section 2-44-080, unless: (1) an ordinance authorizing a City land sale or financial assistance, as described in Section 2-44-080(C), has been introduced to City Council prior to November 1, 2017; or (2) an ordinance authorizing a rezoning of property, as described in Section 2-44-080(C), has been introduced to City Council and (i) in the case of projects that are subject to planned development review, the Chicago Plan Commission has adopted a resolution recommending approval of the planned development prior to November 1, 2017, or (ii) in the case of any other rezoning of property, the Committee

on Zoning, Landmarks and ~~Buildings~~ Building Standards has voted to approve the rezoning prior to November 1, 2017.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 6. Section 2-44-105 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-44-105 Pilsen-Little Village affordable housing pilot area.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(H) *Pending applications.* This section shall apply to all residential housing projects subject to the affordable housing requirements in Section 2-44-080, unless: (1) an ordinance authorizing a City land sale or financial assistance, as described in Section 2-44-080(C), has been introduced to City Council prior to January 1, 2019; or (2) an ordinance authorizing a rezoning of property, as described in Section 2-44-080(C), has been introduced to City Council and (i) in the case of projects that are subject to planned development review, the Chicago Plan Commission has adopted a resolution recommending approval of the planned development prior to January 1, 2019, or (ii) in the case of any other rezoning of property, the Committee on Zoning, Landmarks and ~~Buildings~~ Building Standards has voted to approve the rezoning prior to January 1, 2019.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 7. Section 2-92-400 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-92-400 Compliance with Sections 2-92-330 and 2-92-390 – Reports.

For construction contracts having an estimated contract value of \$100,000.00 or more which are directly supervised by the City of Chicago, the ~~chief procurement officer~~ Chief Procurement Officer shall report during the first quarter of each calendar year at a public hearing before the ~~city council committee on employment~~ City Council Committee on Contracting Oversight and Equity, to detail compliance and the methods used to achieve compliance with the requirements of Sections 2-92-330 and 2-92-390 of this chapter for the prior calendar year. A written copy of this testimony shall be made available to the public by the ~~chief procurement officer~~ Chief Procurement Officer.

For construction projects funded in part with federal revenues as described in Section 2-92-330(a) of this chapter, the head of each department which supervises such a project shall report during the first quarter of each calendar year at a public hearing before the ~~city council committee on employment~~ City Council Committee on Contracting Oversight and Equity to detail compliance and the methods used to achieve compliance with the requirements of Sections 2-92-330 and 2-92-390 of this chapter for the prior calendar year. A written copy of this testimony shall be made available to the public by such department head.

SECTION 8. Section 2-92-930 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language stricken through, as follows:

2-92-930 Veteran-owned small local business – Certification and reporting.

The Chief Procurement Officer is authorized to certify veteran-owned small local businesses. The Chief Procurement Officer shall provide a semi-annual report to the City Council Committee on ~~the Budget and Government operations~~ Contracting Oversight and Equity regarding veteran-owned small local businesses certified by the City.

SECTION 9. Section 2-140-010 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-140-010 Establishment and authority.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

Be It Further Resolved, That the public building commission provide projected energy budgets for all new buildings to the Chicago City Council Committee on ~~Health and Environmental Protection~~ and Energy; and

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 10. Section 2-173-050 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-173-050 No private cause of action.

This chapter does not create or form the basis for liability on the part of the City, its agents, or agencies. The exclusive remedy for violation of this chapter shall be through the City's disciplinary procedures for officers and employees under regulations including but not limited to this City personnel rules, union contracts, civil service commission rules, or any other agency rules and/or regulations. A person alleging a violation of this chapter against a member of the Chicago Police Department shall forward a complaint to the Independent Police Review Authority, or any successor independent police review agency; all other complaints shall be forwarded to the Office of the Inspector General ("Inspector General") who shall process it in accordance with the complaint-processing procedures established in Chapter 2-56 of this Code except that if the complaint is against any member of the City Council or any employee or staff person of any City Council committee, the Inspector General shall promptly transmit said complaint to the ~~chairman~~ Chairman of the City Council Committee on ~~Committees, and Rules and Ethics~~ for processing or such successor committee having jurisdiction over said matters.

SECTION 11. Section 7-12-365 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language stricken through, as follows:

7-12-365 Coyote management program.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

The executive director shall produce and provide a progress report to the City Council Committee on Health and Human Relations ~~Environmental Protection~~ on or before October 15th of each year in the event of any new information regarding coyote management efforts during that year.

SECTION 12. Section 11-6-170 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

11-6-170 Powers and duties of the commissioner and other city department heads.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(G) *Annual report – Required.* A joint committee of the ~~committee on finance~~ Committee on Finance, the ~~committee on economic, capital and technology development~~ Committee on Economic, Capital and Technology Development, and the ~~committee on energy, environmental protection and public utilities~~ Committee on Environmental Protection and Energy, or their applicable successor committees, shall be convened annually for the purpose of receiving a report from the commissioner about the Chicago Green Business Program. The commissioner shall appear before such joint committee to: (1) present such report; (2) answer questions about the CGB Program; (3) describe the local business outreach program required under subsection (G) of this section; (4) describe any incentives for participation in the CGB Program developed pursuant to subsection (H) of this section; and (5) provide the joint committee with a current list of all businesses certified as a Chicago Green Business.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

ARTICLE III. JOURNAL CORRECTIONS

SECTION 1. PREFATORY EXPLANATION. The text of Coun. J. 11-14-18, p.90348, §14, added Section 2-45-100 to the Municipal Code of Chicago. As a result of a typographical error, the text of Coun. J. 11-14-18, p. 90348, §15, inadvertently repealed Section 2-45-100 in its entirety. The City Council of the City of Chicago wishes to correct this error.

SECTION 2. Chapter 2-45 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding Section 2-45-100, underscored below, as follows:

2-45-100 Program applications, administration and closing costs – Fees.

The Commissioner shall have the authority to charge fees in the amount specified and as provided in this section for the processing of program applications and administration and closing costs: (1) of programs administered by the Department, and (2) relating to the sale of city-owned property. Such fees shall be made payable to the Department of Finance. The fees shall be nonrefundable and shall not guarantee approval of an application or adequacy of funding. The amount of such fees shall be as follows:

Loans:

Micro Loan Program

- Application fee: \$100
- Closing fee (due at closing): \$250

Amendments/modifications to Urban Development Action Grants and Illinois Development Action Grants (including subordination and refinancing requests)

- Administration fee (due at time of city's approval of request): \$1,000.00 or 2% of the outstanding principal balance (whichever is greater)
- Administration fee (due at time of city's approval of request): \$500.00 or 2% of the outstanding principal balance (whichever is greater)

Tax Increment Financing Bonds:

- Up to \$3,000,000.00: \$60,000.00
- Over \$3,000,000.00: \$60,000.00 plus 1.5% of the principal amount over \$3,000,000.00

Development Assistance Program:

Commercial Facade Rebate Program:

- Application fee: \$50.00

Industrial Facade Rebate Program

- Application fee: \$100.00

Business Infrastructure Assistance (small)

- Application fee \$ 100.00

Business Infrastructure Assistance (large)

- Application fee: \$200.00

Commercial Area Signage Program

- Application fee: \$25.00

Security Rebate Program

- Application fee: \$25.00

The processing of applications for the programs specified in this section shall be contingent on the payment of the fees specified.

The Commissioner may also specify that certain project and land sale-related out-of-pocket expenses such as recording and filing fees, title search fees, appraisal fees and credit report charges shall be the responsibility of the applicant or purchaser, as applicable.

SECTION 3. PREFATORY EXPLANATION. Due to a typographical error, the text of Coun. J. 11-14-18, p. 90348, §15, repealed in its entirety Section 2-45-100. The intent of §15 was to repeal in its entirety Section 2-45-110 (2007 affordable housing commitment), the substance of which was relocated in the same ordinance to a newly-created Section 2-44-070 (2007 affordable housing commitment). The City Council of the City of Chicago wishes to correct this error.

SECTION 4. Section 2-45-110 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby repealed in its entirety.

ARTICLE IV. MISCELLANEOUS CODE CORRECTIONS

SECTION 1. Section 2-8-090 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 2. Section 2-8-100 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 3. Section 2-44-070 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-44-070 2007 affordable housing commitment.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(i) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, for any planned development or residential housing project subject to the affordable housing requirements of this section:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(2) the Commissioner shall cause a lien, regulatory agreement or similar instrument to be recorded, initially, prior to development, against the ~~and~~ land comprising the planned development or residential housing project, and subsequently, in connection with the sale or rental of any affordable housing unit, against the land on which such affordable housing unit is located to secure the requirements of this section and the recapture of the following amounts:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 4. Section 2-44-090 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by inserting the language underscored, as follows:

2-44-090 Near north/near west affordable housing pilot area.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(K) Expiration. This section shall expire and be repealed of its own accord, without further action by the City Council, on December 31, 2020.

SECTION 5. Section 2-44-100 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by inserting the language underscored, as follows:

2-44-100 Milwaukee corridor affordable housing pilot area.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(K) Expiration. This section shall expire and be repealed of its own accord, without further action by the City Council, on December 31, 2020.

SECTION 6. Section 2-44-105 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by deleting the language stricken through, as follows:

2-44-105 Pilsen – Little Village affordable housing pilot area.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(J) Expiration. This section shall expire and be repealed of its own accord, without further action by the City Council, on December 31, 2023. ~~Sections 2-44-090 and 2-44-100 shall expire and be repealed of their own accord, without further action by the City Council, on December 31, 2020.~~

SECTION 7. Section 2-56-060 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

2-56-060 Investigation reports.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

Disclosure of reports and materials respecting disciplinary investigations concerning personnel of the City Council as defined in Section 2-56-025(a)(2) and (3) is hereby expressly limited to the ultimate jurisdictional authorities for such matters as set forth in Section 2-56-025(b), unless the matter concerns misconduct involving both personnel of the City Council as defined in Section 2-56-025(a)(2) and (3) and non-City Council personnel as otherwise defined in this chapter, in which case the report and all relevant information materials, including that concerning the subject City Council personnel shall be provided to all appropriate ultimate jurisdiction authorities as defined in Section ~~-025(b)~~ 2-56-025(b).

SECTION 8. Section 2-92-597 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows.

2-92-597 Safety enhancing vehicle equipment contracting.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(g) Annual waiver.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

~~(3)~~(2) If, upon review of the application, the chief procurement officer or his or her designee determines that: (i) the applicant has met all of the requirements in subsection (g)(1) of this section; and (ii) compliance with the requirements of this section will cause the applicant to suffer an undue financial hardship, the chief procurement officer is authorized to grant an annual waiver to the applicant.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 9. Section 4-4-150 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-4-150 Indebtedness – License ineligibility.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

~~(d)~~(c) A late fee and interest shall be assessed in connection with a license renewal if the license cannot be issued or renewed in a timely manner due to outstanding debt.

SECTION 10. Section 4-5-010 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-5-010 Establishment of license fees.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

~~(3)~~(1)(3.1) Regulated Business License (4-6) – Booting of Motor Vehicles \$1,000.00

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 11. Section 4-6-130 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-6-130 Private scavenger.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

“Disposal and Recycling Management Company” means any person engaged in the business of managing the removal and disposal of recyclable material, or grease, fats and oils, or table refuse or animal or vegetative matter usually known as garbage, or other wastes other than construction or demolition debris from any premises through the use of scavenger vehicles owned by another person. The term “Disposal and Recycling Management Company” does not include any person who qualifies as a “City-based business” pursuant to Chapter Section

2-92-412 of this Code or any person engaged in the business of managing the removal and disposal of recyclable material, or construction and demolition debris, or grease, fats and oils, or table refuse or animal or vegetative matter usually known as garbage, or other wastes from any premises pursuant to a contract with the City.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 12. Section 4-6-230 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-6-230 Booting of motor vehicles.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(f) *Legal duties.* Each licensee engaged in the business of booting shall have a duty to:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(3) post signs, no fewer than 14 days prior to the commencement of a booting operation at each location where a booting operation will be conducted. Such signs shall be at least 24 inches in height and 36 inches in width, and shall contain the following information: (i) the date upon which a booting operation shall commence; (ii) the terms of use of the subject property; (iii) the fee for removing a boot; (iv) the licensee's name and address, and 24-hour telephone hotline meeting the requirements of paragraph (15) of this subsection (f); (v) the name and telephone number of the owner or manager of the property where booting operations are being conducted; and (vi) a statement notifying consumers of their rights under this section using text provided by the department. The signs required under this paragraph (3) shall be: (a) conspicuously posted as close as physically possible at each vehicle entry point to, and at each vehicle exit point from, the property where booting operations are being conducted; (b) posted in a place and manner such that the signs are not obstructed from plain view by parked vehicles or foliage; and (c) maintained, and remain in place, as long as ~~a booting operations~~ booting operations are being conducted at such location;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 13. Section 4-6-250 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-6-250 Expediter company.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(e) *Prohibited acts.* It shall be unlawful for any licensee engaged in the business of expediter company to:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(6) knowingly provide or offer to provide a gift to a city employee in violation of Section ~~2-156-040~~ 2-156-142 or in violation of any city department's zero gift policy;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 14. Section 4-6-260 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored, and by deleting the language stricken through, as follows:

4-6-260 Expediter/natural person.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(e) *Prohibited acts.* It shall be unlawful for any licensee engaged in the business of expediter to:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(6) knowingly provide or offer to provide a gift to a city employee in violation of Section ~~2-156-040~~ 2-156-142 or in violation of any city department's zero gift policy;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 15. Section 4-8-044 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored, as follows:

4-8-044 Pop-up food establishment user.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(c) *Duration of license – Change of location authorized when.*

(1) *Duration of license.*

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(ii) Tier II and Tier III licenses under this section shall be issued for a 5-day, 30-day or 90-day period and may be reissued for additional consecutive terms. Provided, however, that under no circumstances shall a Tier II or Tier III licensee under this section operate a pop-up food establishment at the same location for a period in excess of 90 days within any 365-day period.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 16. Section 4-8-045 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-8-045 Pop-up food establishment host.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(b) *Pop-up food establishment host license – Required when – Exceptions.* No person shall engage in the business of pop-up food establishment host without first having

obtained a pop-up food establishment host license under this section. Provided, however, that a pop-up food establishment host license under this section shall not be required if:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(3) the premises is a private residence and the occupant thereof hires a chef to prepare or serve food within that residence for such occupant's own consumption or for consumption by such occupant's invited guests;

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 17. Section 4-11-060 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-11-060 Permit and license fees.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(b) *Permit fees.* Except as otherwise provided in subsection (a) of this section, the fee for a permit under this chapter shall be as follows:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(3) Single Day Vendor permits:

FOOD

10' by 30' space or food truck	\$125.00 per week
10' by 10' space or food truck <u>cart</u>	\$50.00 per week

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 18. Section 4-28-060 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-28-060 Insurance – Required.

Each applicant for a drain layer's license shall furnish proof of insurance evidencing commercial general liability insurance with limits of not less than \$300,000.00 per occurrence, for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage arising in any way from the issuance of the license or activities conducted pursuant to the license. The insurance policy required under this subsection shall: (i) be issued by an insurer authorized to insure in Illinois, (ii) include a provision requiring 30 days' advance notice to the commissioner prior to cancellation or lapse of the policy, and (iii) name the City of Chicago as additional insured on a primary, noncontributory basis for any liability arising directly or indirectly from the licensee's operations. The licensee shall maintain the insurance required under this section in full force and effect for the duration of the license period.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 19. Section 4-60-030 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-60-030 License issuance prohibited when.

No license for the sale of alcoholic liquor shall be issued to:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(z) Any person who is married to or is the registered domestic partner of an individual who is disqualified from obtaining a license under this chapter or under the Liquor Control Act of 1934, as amended, unless the person can establish by clear and convincing proof that the disqualified individual will not have any direct or indirect beneficial interest in any liquor license issued to the person under this chapter; provided, however, that if the disqualified individual was denied a liquor license pursuant to subsections (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (n), (o) or (t) of this section, the person who is married to or the registered domestic partner of the disqualified individual shall not be required to comply with this subsection ~~(y)~~ (z) if the ~~local liquor control commissioner~~ Local Liquor Control Commissioner determines, after investigation, that the disqualified individual has been sufficiently rehabilitated to warrant the public trust. For purposes of this subsection, the term "registered domestic partner" means any person who has filed a fully executed affidavit of domestic partnership with the Office of the County Clerk or pursuant to Section 2-152-072 of this ~~code~~ Code.

SECTION 20. Section 4-64-240 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

4-64-240 License fees.

The fee for a tobacco license under this Chapter shall be as set forth in ~~Chapter~~ Section 4-5-010 for each covered business activity identified on the face of such license.

SECTION 21. Section 7-28-445 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, which expired on July 1, 2015, is hereby deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 22. Section 9-44-040 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language struck through, as follows:

9-44-040 Tow trucks – Equipment and markings.

(a) No person shall drive or operate a tow truck unless the truck complies with the following:

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

(3) Every tow truck shall be equipped with at least one cubic foot of sand or dirt, one broom, one shovel, one trash can and one fully charged fire extinguisher, dry chemical

or carbon dioxide with a rating of 4-B-C units or greater and bearing the approval of a laboratory qualified by the fire commissioner or the fire commissioner's departmently departmental designee for this purpose.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

SECTION 23. Section 9-114-240 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language stricken through, as follows:

9-114-240 Removal or change of officer.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

The commissioner will promulgate ~~in rules and regulations~~ describing the process that licensees must follow when they are removing or changing ~~officers~~ officers' equipment and the applicable fees for removal or change of officers.

SECTION 24. Section 11-4-120 of the Municipal Code of Chicago is hereby amended by adding the language underscored and by deleting the language stricken through, as follows:

11-4-120 Definitions.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

"Removal" or "removal action" means the cleanup or removal of released hazardous substances from the environment, such actions as may be necessary taken in the event of the threat of release of hazardous substances into the environment, such actions as may be necessary to monitor, assess and evaluate the release or threat of release of hazardous substances, the disposal of removed material, or the taking of such other actions as may be necessary to prevent, minimize or mitigate damage to the public health or welfare of the environment, which may otherwise result from a release or threat of release. The term includes, in addition, without being limited to, security fencing or other measures to limit access, provision of alternative water supplies, temporary evacuation and housing of threatened individuals, and any emergency assistance which may be provided under the ~~Illinois Emergency Services and Disaster Agency Act of 1975~~ Illinois Emergency Management Agency Act, as amended, or any other law.

(Omitted text is unaffected by this ordinance)

ARTICLE VI. EFFECTIVE DATE

SECTION 1. This ordinance shall take full force and effect upon its passage and publication.